

### Clearstream Europe AG Supervisory Board Rules of Procedure

November 2025 Clearstream Europe AG

Document number: 7646

November 2025

Information in this document is subject to change without prior notice.

This document is available in electronic format and may be provided in other formats at the discretion of Clearstream Europe AG (referred to hereinafter as Clearstream Europe or CEU). CEU grants its clients permission to reproduce, store and print this document to the extent deemed reasonable and necessary for receiving from CEU the services described herein. Any software provided, as set out in the present document, shall be provided under the applicable licence terms.

Unless otherwise stated, all times are given in Central European Time (CET).

© Clearstream Europe AG (2025). All rights reserved.

Clearstream, CFF and Vestima are registered trademarks of Clearstream Services S.A.

### Contents

§1	General, Meeting Language	4
<b>§2</b>	Tasks and Responsibilities	4
§3	Constituent Meeting	5
<b>§</b> 4	Membership, Term of Office	5
<b>§</b> 5	Suitability Assessment	5
<b>§</b> 6	Meetings, Resolutions	6
<b>§</b> 7	Supervisory Board Committees	<b>7</b>
§8	Convention of Committees, Attendance at Meetings	<b>7</b>
<b>§</b> 9	Adoption of Resolutions in the Committees	8
§10	Risk Committee	8
§11	Audit Committee	9
§12	Remuneration (Compensation Review) Committee	9
§13	Direct access to the Supervisory Board	10
§14	Confidentiality	10
§15	Conflicts of Interest	11
§16	Review and Modification of these Rules of Procedure	11

### §1 General, Meeting Language

- 1. The Supervisory Board shall exercise its activities in accordance with the applicable statutory provisions, in particular the German Stock Corporation Act as amended, the German Banking Act as amended, relevant EU Regulations and EU-Directives notably the European Central Securities Depositories Regulation (CSDR)1 -, the Articles of Incorporation of the Company and these Rules of Procedure as well as applicable policies, in particular the Conflicts of Interest Policy.
- 2. Due to the international composition of the Supervisory Board, the meeting language is English. Meeting documents, resolution proposals and minutes of the Supervisory Board meetings shall be prepared in English.
- 3. Upon request by a member of the Supervisory Board, German shall apply as additional language. In this case, simultaneous interpreting services shall be rendered by sworn interpreters for the meetings with regard to German and English. The meeting documents, resolution proposals and minutes of the Supervisory Board meetings shall in this case be presented in German and English. Translations of the meeting documents, resolution proposals and upon request by a member of the Supervisory Board the correspondence between individual members of the Supervisory Board shall insofar be made by the company. In the case described in this paragraph, the German version of the meeting documents, resolution proposals and minutes of the Supervisory Board meetings shall be legally binding.

### §2 Tasks and Responsibilities

The Supervisory Board has in particular the following tasks and responsibilities:

- 1. The Supervisory Board appoints the members of the Executive Board.
- 2. The Supervisory Board advises and supervises the Executive Board in the management of the Company.
- 3. It must be involved in decisions of fundamental importance for the Company. The Supervisory Board specifies approval requirements for matters of fundamental importance for the benefit of the Supervisory Board.
- 4. The chairperson of the Supervisory Board shall maintain regular contact with the Executive Board, particularly with the chairperson of the Executive Board, and consult with him/her with respect to the Company's strategy, business development and risk management. The chairperson of the Executive Board must promptly inform the chairperson of the Supervisory Board of any important events. The chairperson of the Supervisory Board must then notify the Supervisory Board without delay, and if necessary call an extraordinary Supervisory Board meeting.

Supervisory Board Rules of Procedure Clearstream Europe AG

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Please consider the Guidance Note in relation to the allocation of the tasks of Art. 49 para 2 and 3 of the COMMISSION DELEGATED REGULATION (EU) 2017/392 of 11 November 2016 to either the Executive Board and/or the Supervisory Board of the Company.

- 5. The Supervisory Board examines the annual financial statements and the management report provided by the Executive Board. The Supervisory Board approves the annual financial statements. It shall report its observations on the results of its examination to the annual General Meeting of Shareholders.
- 6. The Supervisory Board reviews the effectiveness of its activities on an annual basis.

### §3 Constituent Meeting

The Supervisory Board is constituted pursuant to § 7 para. (4) of the Company's Articles of Incorporation.

### §4 Membership, Term of Office

- 1. The Supervisory Board consists of six members. One third of its members, but at least two members, shall be independent. A member of the Supervisory Board may not at the same time be a member of the Executive Board or an authorized representative of the Company.
- 2. At least one member of the Supervisory Board has expertise in the area of accounting and at least one member of the Supervisory Board has expertise in the area of auditing as defined in Section 100 (5) Stock Corporation Act. All members should be familiar with the field of operations (sector) of the Company.
- 3. Such members shall be elected for a term of office ending at the closing of the General Shareholders' Meeting, which votes on the approval for the fourth fiscal year after the commencement of the term of office, not including such fiscal year in which the term of office has commenced.
- 4. Members of the Supervisory Board may be removed from office by the Shareholders' Meeting prior to the expiration of their term of office. Such resolution shall be taken by the simple majority of the votes cast.
- 5. Upon petition by the Supervisory Board, the court shall remove a member of the Supervisory Board for material cause. The Supervisory Board shall decide to file such petition by a simple majority. The term of office also ends with the expiration of the term or by resignation of the member of the Supervisory Board.
- 6. A successor for a member resigning before his/her term of office shall be elected for the remaining term of office of the resigning member.

### §5 Suitability Assessment

A member of the Supervisory Board has to fulfil certain criteria. Inter alia, he/she shall be of sufficiently good repute and shall have appropriate knowledge, skills and experience. In order to be compliant with regulatory requirements, candidates and members of the Supervisory Board individually and collectively, have to regularly run through a suitability assessment, which is initiated by the chairperson according to

### §6 Meetings, Resolutions

- 1. The chairperson of the Supervisory Board convenes the meetings of the Supervisory Board which take place at least twice per calendar half-year with a notice period of at least ten (10) working days between the notice of meeting, under indication of the topics of the agenda, and the day of the meeting. The invitation is sent in electronic form but may also be distributed in writing, by telephone, by facsimile or by using another common form of communication. When calculating the term, the day of the submission and the day of the meeting shall not count. In urgent cases, the invitation term may be shortened and the invitation may be submitted orally or by telephone if no member of the Supervisory Board objects thereto. Preparatory documents for meetings of the Supervisory Board shall be provided to the members of the Supervisory Board in a timely manner ahead of the meetings.
- 2. Resolutions shall be passed in meetings of the Supervisory Board, unless, upon invitation by the chairperson, they are passed by votes cast in writing, via telephone, facsimile, e-mail or in any other electronic form pursuant to Paragraph (3).
- 3. Resolutions of the Supervisory Board may be passed other than at meetings by votes cast in writing, by telephone, by video conference, by facsimile, by e-mail or by a combination of these communication forms only if the chairperson of the Supervisory Board so determines in case of urgency in a specific case. Resolutions passed by means of the aforementioned ways shall be recorded in writing by the chairperson of the Supervisory Board and shall be announced to the other members of the Supervisory Board without delay. Resolutions may also be passed where some votes are cast during a meeting and some votes are cast pursuant to sentence 1 of this paragraph. Sentence 2 shall apply accordingly.
- 4. Members of the Supervisory Board who do not attend a meeting may participate in the passing of resolutions of the Supervisory Board and its committees by authorising other members of the Supervisory Board to present their written votes at the meeting.
- 5. The meetings of the Supervisory Board shall be chaired by the chairperson of the Supervisory Board or, in the event, he/she is unable to attend, by his/her deputy. In case there are several deputies, the oldest deputy shall chair the meetings.
- 6. A quorum shall exist at Supervisory Board meetings if at least half of its members of which, according to law or the Articles of Incorporation, it has to consist (at least however, three members) take part in the resolution. Unless otherwise provided by law or the Articles of Incorporation, resolutions will be adopted by simple majority of the votes cast. The foregoing shall also apply to elections. In the event of a tie, the chairperson's vote shall be decisive. The deputy is not entitled to such a casting vote. The method of voting shall be determined by the chairperson. A member also takes part in the resolution if he/she abstains from voting.
- 7. Any proceedings and resolutions of the Supervisory Board shall be recorded in minutes, which shall be signed by the chairperson, or, in the event, the chairperson is unable to attend, by his/her deputy, and which must be available no later than fifteen (15) working days after the meeting. The minutes shall state the venue and date of the meeting, the participants, the items on the agenda, the main contents of the discussions and the resolutions of the Supervisory Board. The Company shall make the minutes of the meetings of the Supervisory Board available to the competent authority and the auditor upon request.

- 8. The chairperson of the Supervisory Board or in case he/she is unable to attend his/her deputy (the oldest in case of several deputies) is authorized to issue the declarations of intent necessary for the implementation of the resolutions of the Supervisory Board and its committees in the name of the Supervisory Board, and to accept declarations on behalf of the Supervisory Board. To the extent the Company is represented by the Supervisory Board, the Supervisory Board shall be represented by its chairperson and in case he/she is unable to attend his/her deputy (the oldest in case of several deputies).
- 9. The members of the Executive Board shall attend the meetings of the Supervisory Board, unless provided otherwise by the Supervisory Board in individual cases. If the auditor attends the meeting as an expert, the Executive Board shall not attend this meeting, unless the Supervisory Board or the committee deems its participation necessary.

### §7 Supervisory Board Committees

- 1. The Supervisory Board may decide to create committees. The Supervisory Board shall at least constitute three separate committees from among its members: a risk committee (§ 10), an audit committee (§ 11) and a remuneration committee (§ 12). Such committees have to consist of a minimum of three members each. The Supervisory Board shall ensure an appropriate reporting by the committees to the Supervisory Board members.
- 2. On behalf and by proxy of the Supervisory Board, the committees, to the extent legally permitted, shall perform the functions assigned to them in these Rules of Procedure and in specific Supervisory Board resolutions.
- 3. The Supervisory Board shall assign a member of the respective committee to act as the committee's chairperson and a member as deputy chairperson. To ensure a separation between the committees, the chairpersons of the committees shall be different. The chairpersons shall have appropriate experience in the field of competence of the respective committee and shall be independent from the Company's Executive Board members.
- 4. The majority of the members of the committees shall be different. Conflicts of interest should be managed in respect of persons participating in more than one committee. Each committee member shall have the necessary knowledge, skills and experiences to comply with the tasks of the respective committee.
- 5. The committee's chairperson, in his/her sole discretion, may consult with Supervisory Board members who do not belong to the committee in question.
- 6. Upon the committee's request, members of the Executive Board may be called in to the committee meetings.

# §8 Convention of Committees, Attendance at Meetings

The committees are convened by their chairpersons. Stating the reason for such request, each committee member may request the chairperson to convene the committee. The committee has to be convened as often as appears necessary for the orderly performance of the committee's tasks. If and insofar as

resolutions are to be adopted in a specific committee meeting, the notice period between sending the convening notice, which communicates the matters at issue for resolution, and the date of the actual meeting has to be ten (10) working days at minimum; however, the convention may also be at short notice, if necessary.

## §9 Adoption of Resolutions in the Committees

- A quorum shall be deemed present at a committee meeting if more than half of its members, but in any case no less than three members, participate in a resolution to be voted upon. Unless mandatory law or the Articles of Incorporation provide to the contrary, resolutions will be adopted by a simple majority of the votes cast. Regarding the adoption of resolutions, the provisions governing the Full Supervisory Board shall apply mutatis mutandis.
- 2. Minutes of the committee's meetings have to be prepared which have to be signed by the chairperson.
  - § 6 Paragraph 7 shall apply accordingly. Afterwards, the minutes have to be transmitted to all Supervisory Board members immediately.

### §10 Risk Committee

- The risk committee shall be composed of at least three Supervisory Board members, one of which
  must be an employee representative on the Supervisory Board. The chairperson of the risk
  committee must be an independent member of the Supervisory Board and have appropriate
  experience in the area of risk management. Meetings of the Risk Committee are held at least four
  times a year (usually once a quarter).
- 2. The risk committee shall in particular address the following issues:
  - a. Advise the Supervisory Board on the institution's overall current and future risk appetite, risk tolerance and risk strategy and assist the Supervisory Board in overseeing the implementation of that strategy,
  - b. Supports the Supervisory Board in fulfilling its supervisory duties with regard to information and communication technology (ICT) and information and communication technology security, including cyber risks, and oversees the monitoring of information security services and risks, including the ICT risk management framework
  - c. Review whether the conditions offered to clients take into account the institution's business model and risk structure. If this is not the case, the risk committee submits proposals to the Executive Board, how the conditions to clients in accordance with the business model and the risk structure could be created, and
  - d. Examine whether incentives provided by the remuneration system take into consideration the risk, capital and liquidity structure of the institution and the likelihood and timing of earnings. The tasks of the remuneration committee according to § 12 remain unaffected.

3. The risk committee may take the advice of external experts, if necessary. The risk committee determines the type, comprehensiveness, format and frequency of information to be provided by the Executive Board with regard to strategy and risk.

### §11 Audit Committee

- 1. The audit committee shall be composed of at least three Supervisory Board members, one of which must be an employee representative on the Supervisory Board. The chairperson of the audit committee shall have expertise in the areas of accounting and auditing. At least one other member of the audit committee shall have expertise in the areas of accounting or auditing as defined in Section 100 (5) Stock Corporation Act. All members of the audit committee should be familiar with the field of operations (sector) of the Company. Meetings of the Audit Committee are held at least four times a year (usually once a quarter).
- 2. The audit committee shall in particular address the following issues:
  - a. Monitoring of the accounting and financial reporting processes,
  - b. Monitoring of the effectiveness of the risk management process, in particular the internal control system (IKS), the risk management system, the compliance system and internal audit,
  - c. Monitoring of the execution of audits, in particular in relation to the selection and independence of the auditor, the quality of the audit and the (additional) services provided by the auditor (scope, frequency, reports). The audit committee shall provide the Supervisory Board with proposals for the election of auditor as well as the auditor's compensation and shall advise the Supervisory Board with regard to the termination or continuation of the audit engagement,
  - d. Submission of recommendations to the Supervisory Board to ensure the integrity of the reporting and accounting process; and
  - e. Monitoring of the speedy remedy of deficiencies by the Executive Board by means of appropriate measures.
- 3. The audit committee may take the advice of external experts. Each member of the audit committee may through the chairperson of the audit committee directly request information from the heads of those central areas of the Company, which are responsible for the tasks relating to the audit committee, in particular pursuant to paragraph 2. The chairperson of the audit committee shall communicate the information obtained to all members of the audit committee. If information is obtained pursuant to sentence 2 of this paragraph, the Executive Board has to be informed accordingly without delay.

## §12 Remuneration (Compensation Review) Committee

1. The remuneration (compensation review) committee ("remuneration committee") shall be composed of at least three Supervisory Board members, one of which must be an employee representative on the Supervisory Board. The chairperson of the remuneration committee shall

have sufficient knowledge and professional experience in the area of risk management and risk controlling, in particular regarding the mechanism of the orientation of the remuneration system towards the overall readiness to assume risk and risk strategy (Gesamtrisikobereitschaft und - strategie) as well as towards the own funds (Eigenmittelausstattung) of the Company. Meetings of the Remuneration Committee are held at least two times a year.

- 2. The tasks of the remuneration committee shall particularly be:
  - a. To supervise the reasonableness of the remuneration system of the members of the Executive Board and of the employees, and in particular the appropriateness of the compensation of the head of the risk control function and of the compliance function as well as of such employees having a substantial influence on the overall risk profile of the enterprise and to support the Supervisory Board in the monitoring of the reasonableness of the remuneration system regarding of the employees of the enterprise and at the same time to assess the effects of the remuneration system to the risk-, capital- and liquidity management;
  - b. To prepare the resolutions of the Supervisory Board regarding the determination of the aggregate remuneration of any member of the Executive Board in doing so taking into account the effects of the resolutions to the risk and the risk management of the enterprise and the long-term interests of the shareholders, investors and other stakeholders;
  - c. To design and further develop the Remuneration Policy covering the remuneration of the Executive Board and
  - d. To support the Supervisory Board in supervising the internal control- and all other relevant areas in the structuring of the remuneration system.
- 3. The remuneration committee shall cooperate with the risk committee. The remuneration committee shall use internal advice, for example from risk controlling, and external advice from individuals independent from the Executive Board. The chairperson of the remuneration committee may obtain information from the head of internal audit and the head of the organizational units responsible for the development of the remuneration systems. The Executive Board must be informed thereof.
- 4. Members of the Executive Board are not allowed to participate in meetings of the remuneration committee, the subject of which is their remuneration.

### §13 Direct access to the Supervisory Board

The chief risk officer, the chief compliance officer, the chief technology officer and the chief internal auditor of the Company have direct access to the Supervisory Board. For this purpose, the respective officer shall usually contact the chairperson of the Supervisory Board and/or the chairpersons of the risk, audit or remuneration committee as far as appropriate.

### §14 Confidentiality

1. The members of the Supervisory Board shall be bound to secrecy in respect of any confidential information within the statutory framework.

2. If a Supervisory Board member intends to pass on information, which has become known to him/her in his/her capacity as member of the Supervisory Board, he/she shall give prior notice to the chairperson of the Supervisory Board.

### §15 Conflicts of Interest

The members of the Supervisory Board must disclose conflicts of interest to the chairperson of the Supervisory Board without delay and inform the other members of the Supervisory Board thereof. Adequate measures to prevent, limit or resolve conflicts of interest shall be taken in accordance with legal requirements and the applicable Conflicts of Interest Policy.

## §16 Review and Modification of these Rules of Procedure

This document is owned by Corporate Governance Post-Trading and shall be reviewed at least every year.

Published by

Clearstream Europe AG

www.clearstream.com

Registered address

Clearstream Europe AG Mergenthalerallee 61 65760 Eschborn Germany

Document number: 7646